

FILED MAY 2 1975

SENATE FILE 507

By COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Passed Senate, Date 5-12-75(1348) Passed House, Date 5-23-75(1932)  
Vote: Ayes 42 Nays 4 Vote: Ayes 77 Nays 7  
Approved 6-20-76

### A BILL FOR

1 An Act relating to the funding, compensation, expenses and  
2 membership of legislative members of committees and  
3 certain statutory or appointive boards, commissions,  
4 and councils.

5 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

6  
7 *Conference Committee Appointed*  
8 *Senators Eugene Hill (Chm.), Coleman, Glenn, Curtis, Schwengel 6/11/75*  
9 *Representatives Cusack (Chm.), Jesse, Woods, Oakley, Brackett 6/10(2285)*  
10 *Returned to Conference Committee 3/2 (p. 678)*

11 *Second Conference Committee Appointed*  
12 *Senators Hill, etc. as above (p. 2431) 5/28/76*  
13 *Representatives Cusack, etc. as above 5/28 (p. 3304)*

14  
15 *Passed per Conference Committee Report*  
16 *Senate 5-28-76 (p. 2477) House 5-29-76 (3375)*  
*38-10 76-0*

17 *Motion to reconsider (2477)*  
18 *" withdrawn 5/29(2491)*

19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

1 Section 1. Section two point ten (2.10), subsection six  
2 (6), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

3 6. In addition to the salaries and expenses ~~herein~~  
4 authorized by this section, members of the general assembly  
5 shall be paid forty dollars per day, except the speaker of  
6 the house who shall be paid sixty dollars per day, and  
7 necessary travel and actual expenses incurred in attending  
8 meetings for which per diem or expenses are authorized by  
9 law for members of the general assembly who serve on statutory  
10 boards, commissions, or councils, and for standing or interim  
11 committee or subcommittee meetings subject to the provisions  
12 of section 2.14, or when on official-state authorized  
13 legislative business, when the general assembly is not in  
14 session. However, if a member of the general assembly or  
15 the lieutenant governor is engaged in authorized legislative  
16 business at a location other than at the seat of government  
17 during the time the general assembly is in session, payment  
18 may be made for the actual transportation and lodging costs  
19 incurred because of the business. Such ~~salaries~~ per diem or  
20 expenses shall be paid promptly from funds appropriated  
21 pursuant to section 2.12, ~~unless otherwise provided by law.~~

22 Sec. 2. Section two point twelve (2.12), unnumbered  
23 paragraph two (2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

24 There is hereby appropriated out of any funds in the state  
25 treasury not otherwise appropriated, such sums as may be  
26 necessary, for each house of the general assembly for the  
27 payment of any unpaid expense ~~filed after adjournment of each~~  
28 ~~annual session~~ of the general assembly ~~or~~ incurred during  
29 or in the interim between sessions of the general assembly,  
30 including but not limited to salaries and necessary travel  
31 and actual expenses of members and expenses of standing and  
32 interim committees or subcommittees and per diem or expenses  
33 for members of the general assembly who serve on statutory  
34 boards, commissions, or councils for which per diem or expenses  
35 are authorized by law. The state comptroller is hereby

1 authorized and directed to issue warrants for such items of  
 2 expense upon requisition of the president and secretary of  
 3 the senate for senate expense or the speaker and chief clerk  
 4 of the house for house expense.

5 Sec. 3. Section two point forty-four (2.44), Code 1975,  
 6 is amended to read as follows:

7 2.44 EXPENSES OF COUNCIL AND SPECIAL INTERIM COMMITTEES.  
 8 Members of the legislative council shall be reimbursed for  
 9 actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance  
 10 of their duties, and shall receive a per diem of forty dollars  
 11 for each day in which engaged in the performance of such  
 12 duties. However, such per diem compensation and expenses  
 13 shall not be paid when the general assembly is actually in  
 14 session at the seat of government. Such expenses and per  
 15 diem shall be paid in the manner provided for in section 2-66  
 16 two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

17 Members of special interim study committees which may from  
 18 time to time be created and members of the legislative fiscal  
 19 committee who are not members of the legislative council shall  
 20 be entitled to receive the same expenses and compensation  
 21 provided for the members of the legislative council. Such  
 22 ~~expenses shall be paid in the manner provided for in section~~  
 23 ~~2-66 within the limit of available funds.--Upon motion approved~~  
 24 ~~by the legislative council, members of such special interim~~  
 25 ~~study committees may be paid for their expenses and per diem~~  
 26 ~~pursuant to the provisions of section 2-12.~~

27 Sec. 4. Section two point sixty-six (2.66), Code 1975,  
 28 is amended to read as follows:

29 2.66 OFFICE AND SUPPLIES--EXPENSES. The office of the  
 30 service bureau shall be located in the statehouse. Supplies,  
 31 postage, and equipment may be requisitioned from the ~~executive~~  
 32 ~~council~~ department of general services. ~~Per diem and expenses~~  
 33 Expenses of the legislative ~~council~~, ~~special interim study~~  
 34 ~~committees~~, and service bureau shall be paid upon the approval  
 35 of the director of the bureau and, if an extraordinary expense,

1 upon the approval of the legislative council or its chairman.

2 Sec. 5. Section eighteen A point one (18A.1), Code 1975,  
3 is amended to read as follows:

4 18A.1 COMMISSION CREATED. There is hereby created the  
5 capitol planning commission composed of ~~nine members:--(1)~~  
6 ~~four members of the general assembly, two thereof to be~~  
7 ~~appointed by the speaker of the house from the membership~~  
8 ~~thereof, two to be appointed by the lieutenant governor from~~  
9 ~~the membership of the senate, and (2)~~ three residents of the  
10 state of Iowa to be appointed by the governor, and ~~(3)~~ the  
11 director of the department of general services or his designee  
12 and the state architect provided by section 218.58.

13 Sec. 6. Section eighteen A point two (18A.2), Code 1975,  
14 is amended to read as follows:

15 18A.2 TERMS. The terms of office of the nonofficial  
16 appointees shall be four years and until their successors  
17 are appointed. Vacancies therein shall be filled by the  
18 governor, such vacancy appointees to serve for the unexpired  
19 term of the original appointee. ~~The terms of office of the~~  
20 ~~members of the general assembly herein shall be for four years~~  
21 ~~unless sooner terminated by ceasing to be members of the~~  
22 ~~general assembly in which event the vacancies thus created~~  
23 ~~shall be filled by the speaker of the house or the lieutenant~~  
24 ~~governor as the case may be, the members so appointed to serve~~  
25 ~~for the unexpired term of their predecessors.--The terms of~~  
26 ~~office of all members of the capitol planning commission in~~  
27 ~~office on July 4, 1965, are continued to May 4, 1967, on which~~  
28 ~~date all terms shall terminate.--Prior to said date~~  
29 ~~appointments shall be made for succeeding members as follows:~~

30 ~~From the house of representatives, one for a term of two~~  
31 ~~years and one for a term of four years.~~

32 ~~From the senate, one for a term of two years and one for~~  
33 ~~a term of four years.~~

34 ~~For successors to nonofficial appointees one for a term~~  
35 ~~of two years and two for terms of four years.~~

1 All terms of members of the commission shall begin on May  
2 1 of each odd-numbered year beginning with May 1, 1967.

3 Sec. 7. Section eighty B point six (80B.6), Code 1975,  
4 is amended by striking subsections two (2) and three (3).

5 Sec. 8. Section ninety-three point two (93.2), Code 1975,  
6 is amended to read as follows:

7 93.2 ESTABLISHMENT. There is established an energy policy  
8 council which shall consist of ~~thirteen~~ nine members. ~~Two~~  
9 ~~members-shall-be-appointed-by-the-president-of-the-senate~~  
10 ~~from-the-membership-of-the-senate-with-no-more-than-one-member~~  
11 ~~being-appointed-from-the-same-political-party.--Two-members~~  
12 ~~shall-be-appointed-by-the-speaker-of-the-house-of~~  
13 ~~representatives-from-the-members-of-the-house-with-no-more~~  
14 ~~than-one-member-being-appointed-from-the-same-political-party.~~  
15 The governor shall appoint five members who shall be reasonably  
16 knowledgeable in the field of energy. Not more than three  
17 of the governor's appointees shall be of the same political  
18 party. They shall be subject to confirmation by two-thirds  
19 of the membership of the senate. The state geologist, the  
20 secretary of agriculture, the chairman of the Iowa state  
21 commerce commission and the executive director of environmental  
22 quality shall serve as ex officio nonvoting members of the  
23 council.

24 Sec. 9. Section ninety-seven B point eight (97B.8), Code  
25 1975, is amended to read as follows:

26 97B.8 ADVISORY INVESTMENT BOARD. A board shall be  
27 established to be known as the "Advisory Investment Board  
28 of the Iowa Public Employees' Retirement System", hereinafter  
29 called the "board", whose duties shall be to advise and confer  
30 with the commission in matters relating to the investment  
31 of the trust funds of the Iowa public employees' retirement  
32 system. The powers of the board shall be purely advisory  
33 and the commission shall not be bound in the making of any  
34 investment by the recommendations of the board. The board  
35 shall consist of ~~seven~~ five members. Five of the members shall

1 be appointed by the governor, one of whom shall be an executive  
2 of a domestic life insurance company, one an executive of  
3 a state or national bank operating within the state of Iowa,  
4 the third shall be an executive of a major industrial  
5 corporation located within the state of Iowa, and two shall  
6 be active members of the system, one of whom shall be an  
7 employee of a school district, county school system, joint  
8 county system or merged area and one of whom shall not be  
9 an employee of a school district, county school system, joint  
10 county system or merged area. ~~The-president-of-the-senate~~  
11 ~~shall-appoint-one-member-from-the-membership-of-the-senate~~  
12 ~~and-the-speaker-of-the-house-of-representatives-shall-appoint~~  
13 ~~one-member-from-the-membership-of-the-house.~~ The two members  
14 ~~appointed-by-the-president-of-the-senate-and-the-speaker-of~~  
15 ~~the-house-of-representatives-and-the~~ two active members of  
16 the system appointed by the governor shall be ex officio  
17 members of the board. The members who are executives of a  
18 domestic life insurance company, a state or national bank  
19 and a major industrial corporation shall be paid their actual  
20 expenses incurred in performance of their duties and shall  
21 receive in addition thereto the sum of forty dollars for each  
22 day of service not exceeding forty days per year. ~~Legislative~~  
23 ~~members-shall-receive-the-sum-of-forty-dollars-for-each-day~~  
24 ~~of-service-and-their-actual-expenses-incurred-in-the~~  
25 ~~performance-of-their-duties.--The-per-diem-and-expenses-of~~  
26 ~~the-legislative-members-shall-be-paid-from-funds-appropriated~~  
27 ~~under-section-2:42.~~ The members who are active members of  
28 the system shall be paid their actual expenses incurred in  
29 the performance of their duties as members of the board and  
30 performance of their duties as members of the board shall  
31 not affect their salaries, vacation or leaves of absence for  
32 sickness or injury. The appointive terms of the members  
33 appointed by the governor shall be for a period of six years  
34 dating from July 1 of the year in which they are appointed.  
35 In the event of vacancy, through resignation or any other

1 cause, in the membership of the board, the governor shall  
2 have the power of appointment. Appointees to this board shall  
3 be subject to confirmation by a two-thirds vote of the senate,  
4 but in the event of interim appointments, such confirmation  
5 shall be necessary at the next session of the senate.

6 Sec. 10. Section two hundred thirty-five A point twenty-  
7 four (235A.24), subsection one (1), Code 1975, is amended  
8 to read as follows:

9 235A.24 COUNCIL ON CHILD ABUSE INFORMATION.

10 1. There is created a council on child abuse information  
11 consisting of ~~nine-regular-members---~~Two members shall be  
12 ~~appointed-from-the-house-of-representatives-by-the-speaker~~  
13 ~~of-the-house, no-more-than-one-of-whom-shall-be-from-the-same~~  
14 ~~political-party---~~Two members shall be appointed from the  
15 ~~senate-by-the-lieutenant-governor, no-more-than-one-of-whom~~  
16 ~~shall-be-from-the-same-political-party---~~The remaining members  
17 ~~of-the-council-shall-consist-of~~ a judge of the district court  
18 appointed by the chief justice of the supreme court, one local  
19 law enforcement official appointed by the governor, the  
20 commissioner of the department of social services or his  
21 designee, and two private citizens not connected with law  
22 enforcement appointed by the governor. The council shall  
23 select its own chairman. The members shall serve at the  
24 pleasure of those by whom their appointments are made.

25 Sec. 11. Section two hundred forty-nine A point four  
26 (249A.4), subsection eight (8), Code 1975, is amended to read  
27 as follows:

28 8. Shall advise and consult at least semiannually with  
29 a council composed of the president, or his or her  
30 representative who is a member of the professional organization  
31 represented by the president, of the Iowa Medical Society,  
32 the Iowa Society of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons, the  
33 Iowa State Dental Society, the Iowa State Nurses Association,  
34 the Iowa Pharmaceutical Association, the Iowa Podiatry Society,  
35 the Iowa Optometric Association, the Iowa Hospital Association,

1 the Iowa Osteopathic Hospital Association, Iowa Ophthalmic  
2 Dispensers, Inc. (opticians) and the Iowa Nursing Home  
3 Association, together with one person designated by the Iowa  
4 state board of chiropractic examiners; ~~one-state-representative~~  
5 ~~from-each-of-the-two-major-political-parties-appointed-by~~  
6 ~~the-speaker-of-the-house, one-state-senator-from-each-of-the~~  
7 ~~two-major-political-parties-appointed-by-the-lieutenant~~  
8 ~~governor, each-for-a-term-of-two-years;~~ four public  
9 representatives, two of whom shall be appointed each year  
10 by the governor for terms of two years each and none of whom  
11 shall be members of, or practitioners of or have a pecuniary  
12 interest in any of the professions or businesses represented  
13 by, any of the several professional groups and associations  
14 specifically represented on the council under this subsection;  
15 the commissioner of public health, or representative designated  
16 by him, and the dean of the college of medicine, University  
17 of Iowa, or a representative designated by him.

18 For each council meeting, ~~other-than-these-held-during~~  
19 ~~the-time-the-general-assembly-is-in-session, each-legislative~~  
20 ~~member-of-the-council~~ the public representatives shall be  
21 reimbursed for actual traveling and other necessary expenses  
22 and shall receive a per diem of forty dollars for each day  
23 in attendance, ~~as-shall-the-public-representatives, regardless~~  
24 ~~of-whether-the-general-assembly-is-in-session.~~

25 Sec. 12. Section two hundred forty-nine B point one  
26 (249B.1), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

27 249B.1 COMMISSION CREATED. There is hereby created the  
28 commission on the aging of the state of Iowa which shall  
29 consist of ~~nine-members:--Two-members-shall-be-appointed-by~~  
30 ~~the-president-of-the-senate-from-the-members-of-the-senate~~  
31 ~~with-no-more-than-one-member-being-appointed-from-the-same~~  
32 ~~political-party:--Two-members-shall-be-appointed-by-the-speaker~~  
33 ~~of-the-house-of-representatives-from-the-members-of-the-house~~  
34 ~~with-no-more-than-one-member-being-appointed-from-the-same~~  
35 ~~political-party:--Five~~ five members shall be appointed by

1 the governor.

2 Sec. 13. Section two hundred forty-nine B point two  
3 (249B.2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

4 249B.2 TERMS. All members of the commission shall be  
5 appointed for terms of four years except the terms of the  
6 nine initial appointees shall be as follows:

7 ~~1. One member appointed from the senate shall serve from~~  
8 ~~the date of appointment to June 30, 1975, and one member~~  
9 ~~appointed from the senate shall serve from the date of~~  
10 ~~appointment to June 30, 1977.~~

11 ~~2. One member appointed from the house of representatives~~  
12 ~~shall serve from the date of appointment to June 30, 1975,~~  
13 ~~and one member appointed from the house of representatives~~  
14 ~~shall serve from the date of appointment to June 30, 1977.~~

15 3. Two members appointed by the governor shall serve from  
16 the date of appointment to June 30, 1975, and three members  
17 appointed by the governor shall serve from the date of  
18 appointment to June 30, 1977.

19 The terms of office of all members shall thereafter commence  
20 on the first day of July following the convening of the general  
21 assembly. Any vacancy on the commission shall be filled for  
22 the unexpired term of the vacancy in the same manner as the  
23 original appointment. ~~If a legislative member ceases to be~~  
24 ~~a member of the general assembly he may continue to serve~~  
25 ~~as a member of the commission until his successor is appointed.~~  
26 ~~A successor may be appointed to complete the term of the~~  
27 ~~person who ceases to be a member of the general assembly.~~

28 Sec. 14. Section two hundred sixty-one point one (261.1),  
29 Code 1975, is amended by striking subsections four (4) and  
30 five (5) and unnumbered paragraph five (5) of subsection six  
31 (6).

32 Sec. 15. Section two hundred seventy-two B point two  
33 (272B.2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

34 272B.2 EDUCATION COMMISSION OF THE STATES. The provisions  
35 of article III, paragraph 1, of the compact notwithstanding,

1 the members of the education commission of the states  
2 representing this state shall consist of the governor, two  
3 nonlegislative members appointed by the governor, two members  
4 of the senate appointed by the president of the senate, and  
5 two members of the house of representatives appointed by the  
6 speaker of the house of representatives. The members shall  
7 serve four-year terms and for the initial appointments, half  
8 of the membership shall be appointed to two-year terms and  
9 half shall be appointed to four-year terms. Members  
10 Nonlegislative members shall serve on the education commission  
11 of the states without compensation, but shall receive their  
12 actual and necessary expenses and travel. Legislative members  
13 shall receive actual and necessary expenses and travel pursuant  
14 to sections two point ten (2.10) and two point twelve (2.12)  
15 of the Code. Vacancies on the commission shall be filled  
16 for the unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as  
17 the original appointment. If a member ceases to be a member  
18 of the general assembly, he shall no longer serve as a member  
19 of the education commission of the states.

20 Sec. 16. Section three hundred four point three (304.3),  
21 Code 1975, is amended by striking subsection six (6).

22 Sec. 17. Section three hundred four point four (304.4),  
23 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

24 304.4 EXPENSES. Members of the commission shall serve  
25 without compensation, ~~except-the-members-of-the-general~~  
26 ~~assembly-who-shall-receive-a-per-diem-of-forty-dollars~~ but  
27 may receive their actual expenses incurred in the performance  
28 of their duties.

29 Sec. 18. Section seven hundred forty-nine B point nineteen  
30 (749B.19), unnumbered paragraph one (1), Code 1975, is amended  
31 to read as follows:

32 There is hereby created a confidential records council  
33 consisting of ~~nine-regular-members:--Two-members-shall-be~~  
34 ~~appointed-from-the-house-of-representatives-by-the-speaker~~  
35 ~~of-the-house, no more than one of whom shall be from the same~~

1 party.--Two members shall be appointed from the senate by  
2 the lieutenant governor, no more than one of whom shall be  
3 from the same party.--The other members of the council shall  
4 be.--A judge of the district court appointed by the chief  
5 justice of the supreme court, one local law enforcement  
6 official, appointed by the governor; the commissioner of  
7 public safety or his designee; and two private citizens not  
8 connected with law enforcement, appointed by the governor.  
9 The council shall select its own chairman. The members shall  
10 serve at the pleasure of those by whom their appointments  
11 are made.

12 Sec. 19. Section seven hundred fifty point eight (750.8),  
13 Code 1975, is repealed.

14 EXPLANATION

15 The bill provides that all legislative members of statutory  
16 boards, commissions, or councils are to be paid during the  
17 interim between legislative sessions their compensation and  
18 expenses when authorized pursuant to the standing appropriation  
19 for legislative expenditures in section 2.12 of the Code.

20 The requirements of legislative membership on the capitol  
21 planning commission, child abuse council, commission on aging,  
22 confidential records council, energy policy council, higher  
23 education facilities commission, IPERS advisory council, law  
24 enforcement advisory council, medical assistance council,  
25 police communications review committee, and state records  
26 commission are eliminated. Legislators would still be required  
27 to serve on the education commission of the states, interstate  
28 cooperation commission and legislative council. Senate File  
29 303, approved by the senate prior to introduction of this  
30 bill, removes legislators from the crime commission.

31 Reference is made to section 2.12 of the Code in those  
32 sections regarding the compensation of members of agencies  
33 having legislative membership. Section 2.12 provides for  
34 an appropriation from the general fund not otherwise  
35 appropriated for legislative expenses. Subsection 6 of section

1 2.10 provides for the amount that a legislator is to receive  
2 during interims between legislative sessions. In addition  
3 this subsection as amended recognizes that legislators may  
4 travel outside of Des Moines during a legislative session  
5 on authorized legislative business and expenses for lodging  
6 and transportation for what is normally out-of-state business  
7 is subject to being paid by the state.

8 The payment through section 2.12 will allow senators and  
9 representatives to be paid through one house of the legislature  
10 (senate for senators, house for house members) for all service  
11 performed whether it be for strictly a legislative committee  
12 or agency or a board, commission, or committee composed of  
13 legislators and nonlegislators. This will simplify payroll  
14 procedures and avoid duplication in work and personnel of  
15 making out payrolls which is now present because many different  
16 agencies presently pay legislators for interim work. This  
17 procedure will also provide for consolidation of pay checks  
18 for legislators, in effect allowing one check in cases where  
19 several may now be issued. Withholding and accounting for  
20 tax purposes should also be simplified. Only one office will  
21 need to be contacted in order to determine total pay and  
22 expenses paid to a senator or representative. Legislative  
23 agencies which normally pay legislators for interim work have  
24 not requested funds for such purposes in anticipation of the  
25 procedures provided for in this bill.

26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32  
33  
34  
35

S-3685.

1 Amend Senate File 507 as follows:  
2 1. Page 1, line 14, by striking the words  
3 "However, if" and inserting in lieu thereof the  
4 words "Members of the general assembly may be  
5 authorized by the legislative council to receive  
6 expenses only incurred in attending meetings of  
7 statutory boards, commissions and councils. If".

S-3685 FILED - *Adopted 5/12 (1348)* BY COMMITTEE ON STATE  
MAY 2, 1975 GOVERNMENT  
EUGENE M. HILL, CHAIRMAN

SENATE FILE 507

S-3764

1 Amend Senate File 507 as follows:  
2 1. Page 1, lines 1 and 2 by striking the words and  
3 figure "subsection six (6)" and inserting in lieu  
4 thereof the words and figures "subsections one (1) and  
5 six (6)".  
6 2. Page 1, by inserting the following after line 2:  
7 "1. Every member of the general assembly except  
8 the speaker of the house and majority and minority  
9 floor leaders of the senate and house shall receive  
10 an annual salary of eight thousand dollars for each  
11 year while serving as a member of the general  
12 assembly. The majority and minority floor leaders  
13 of the senate and house shall receive an annual salary  
14 of nine thousand five hundred dollars for each year  
15 which serving in such capacity. In addition, each  
16 such member shall receive the sum of twenty thirty  
17 dollars per day for expenses of office, except travel,  
18 for each day the general assembly is in session  
19 commencing with the first day of a legislative session  
20 and ending with the day of final adjournment of  
21 each legislative session as indicated by the  
22 journals of the house and senate. However, members  
23 from Polk county shall receive ten dollars per day.  
24 Travel expenses shall be paid at the rate established  
25 by section 79.9 for actual travel in going to and  
26 returning from the seat of government by the nearest  
27 traveled route for not more than one time per week  
28 during a legislative session. However, any increase  
29 from time to time in the mileage rate established  
30 by section 79.9 shall not become effective for members  
31 of the general assembly until the convening of the next  
32 general assembly until the convening of the next general  
33 assembly following the session in which the increase  
34 is adopted; and this provision shall prevail over any  
35 inconsistent provision of any present or future statute."  
36 3. Page 10, by inserting the following after line 13:  
37 " Sec. 20. Paragraph one (1) of Section one (1) of  
38 this Act shall become effective upon the convening of  
39 the next general assembly following the session in  
40 which this Act is adopted."

S-3764 FILED - *Revised out of order*  
MAY 7, 1975 *5/12 (1341)* BY JAMES V. GALLAGHER

S-3766

- 1 Amend the Gallagher amendment S-3764 to Senate
- 2 File 507 as follows:
- 3 1. Line 15 by striking the word "which" and inserting
- 4 the word "while".
- 5 2. Line 32 and 33 by striking the words "until the
- 6 convening of the next general assembly".

S-3766 FILED. *Pulled out of order* BY JAMES V. GALLAGHER  
MAY 8, 1975 *5/12 (1347)*

S-3788

- 1 Amend the State Government Committee's amendment
- 2 S-3685 to Senate File 507, line 7, by inserting after
- 3 the word "councils" the words "and then only if
- 4 authorized in advance of the meeting".

S-3788 FILED & LOST (1348)  
May 12, 1975

BY RICHARD R. RAMSEY  
CALVIN O. HULTMAN

S-3967

1 Amend Senate File 507, as passed by the Senate,  
2 as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by striking all after the enacting  
4 clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

5 "Section 1. Section two point ten (2.10),  
6 subsection six (6), Code 1975, is amended to read  
7 as follows:

8 6. In addition to the salaries and expenses ~~herein~~  
9 authorized by this section, members of the general  
10 assembly shall be paid forty dollars per day, except  
11 the speaker of the house who shall be paid sixty  
12 dollars per day, and necessary travel and actual  
13 expenses incurred in attending meetings for which  
14 per diem or expenses are authorized by law for members  
15 of the general assembly who serve on statutory boards,  
16 commissions, or councils, and for standing or interim  
17 committee or subcommittee meetings subject to the  
18 provisions of section 2.14, or when on official-state  
19 authorized legislative business, when the general  
20 assembly is not in session. However, if a member  
21 of the general assembly or the lieutenant governor  
22 is engaged in authorized legislative business at a  
23 location other than at the seat of government during  
24 the time the general assembly is in session, payment  
25 may be made for the actual transportation and lodging  
26 costs incurred because of the business. Such salaries  
27 per diem or expenses shall be paid promptly from funds  
28 appropriated pursuant to section 2.12, unless otherwise  
29 provided by law.

30 Sec. 2. Section two point twelve (2.12), unnumbered  
31 paragraph two (2), Code 1975, is amended to read as  
32 follows:

33 There is hereby appropriated out of any funds in  
34 the state treasury not otherwise appropriated, such  
35 sums as may be necessary, for each house of the general  
36 assembly for the payment of any unpaid expense ~~filed~~  
37 ~~after adjournment of each annual session~~ of the general  
38 assembly ~~or~~ incurred during or in the interim between  
39 sessions of the general assembly, including but not  
40 limited to salaries and necessary travel and actual  
41 expenses of members and expenses of standing and  
42 interim committees or subcommittees and per diem or  
43 expenses for members of the general assembly who serve  
44 on statutory boards, commissions, or councils for  
45 which per diem or expenses are authorized by law.  
46 The state comptroller is hereby authorized and directed  
47 to issue warrants for such items of expense upon  
48 requisition of the president and secretary of the  
49 senate for senate expense or the speaker and chief  
50 clerk of the house for house expense.

1           Sec. 3. Section two point forty-four (2.44), Code  
2 1975, is amended to read as follows:

3           2.44 EXPENSES OF COUNCIL AND SPECIAL INTERIM  
4 COMMITTEES. Members of the legislative council shall  
5 be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses  
6 incurred in the performance of their duties, and shall  
7 receive a per diem of forty dollars for each day in  
8 which engaged in the performance of such duties.  
9 However, such per diem compensation and expenses shall  
10 not be paid when the general assembly is actually  
11 in session at the seat of government. Such expenses  
12 and per diem shall be paid in the manner provided  
13 for in section ~~2.66~~ two point twelve (2.12) of the  
14 Code.

15           Members of special interim study committees which  
16 may from time to time be created and members of the  
17 legislative fiscal committee who are not members of  
18 the legislative council shall be entitled to receive  
19 the same expenses and compensation provided for the  
20 members of the legislative council. ~~Such expenses~~  
21 ~~shall be paid in the manner provided for in section~~  
22 ~~2.66 within the limit of available funds. Upon motion~~  
23 ~~approved by the legislative council, members of such~~  
24 ~~special interim study committees may be paid for their~~  
25 ~~expenses and per diem pursuant to the provisions of~~  
26 ~~section 2.12.~~

27           Sec. 4. Section two point sixty-six (2.66), Code  
28 1975, is amended to read as follows:

29           2.66 OFFICE AND SUPPLIES--EXPENSES. The office  
30 of the service bureau shall be located in the  
31 statehouse. Supplies, postage, and equipment may  
32 be requisitioned from the ~~executive council~~ department  
33 of general services. ~~Per diem and expenses~~ Expenses  
34 of the legislative council, special interim study  
35 committees, and service bureau shall be paid upon  
36 the approval of the director of the bureau and, if  
37 an extraordinary expense, upon the approval of the  
38 legislative council or its chairman.

39           Sec. 5. Section eighteen A point five (18A.5),  
40 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

41           18A.5 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. The  
42 nonlegislative members of the commission shall be  
43 reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses  
44 and shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem while in  
45 attendance at any meeting of the commission held at  
46 the seat of government and shall be reimbursed for  
47 their expenses for going to and from the seat of  
48 government to attend a meeting. All per diem and  
49 expense moneys paid to the nonlegislative commissioners  
50 shall be paid from funds appropriated to the

1 commission. Service of the director of the department  
2 of general services and the state architect upon this  
3 commission shall be an additional duty conferred by  
4 statute. Legislative members of the commission shall  
5 receive expenses only pursuant to section two point  
6 ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of  
7 the Code.

8 Sec. 6. Section eighty B point eight (80B.8),  
9 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

10 80B.8 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. The  
11 nonlegislative members of the council, who are not  
12 employees of the state or a political subdivision,  
13 shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem. All members  
14 of the council shall be reimbursed for necessary and  
15 actual expenses incurred in attending meetings and  
16 in the performance of their duties. All per diem  
17 and expense moneys paid to nonlegislative members  
18 shall be paid from funds appropriated to the Iowa  
19 law enforcement academy. Legislative members of the  
20 council shall receive expenses only pursuant to section  
21 two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve  
22 (2.12) of the Code.

23 Sec. 7. Section ninety-three point five (93.5),  
24 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

25 93.5 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. ~~Council~~  
26 Nonlegislative council members who are not employees  
27 of the state shall receive a per diem at the rate  
28 of forty dollars for each day devoted to council  
29 business and all nonlegislative members shall be  
30 reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in carrying  
31 out their duties as members of the council.  
32 Legislative members shall receive expenses only  
33 pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section  
34 two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

35 Sec. 8. Section two hundred thirty-five A point  
36 twenty-four (235A.24), subsection two (2), Code 1975,  
37 is amended to read as follows:

38 2. The council shall meet at least annually and  
39 at any other time upon the call of the chairman of  
40 the council, or any three of its members. Each  
41 nonlegislative council member shall be entitled to  
42 reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses  
43 incurred in the performance of official duties from  
44 funds appropriated to the department of social  
45 services. Each legislative member shall receive  
46 expenses only pursuant to section two point ten (2.10)  
47 and section two point twelve (2.12) of the code.

48 Sec. 9. Section two hundred forty-nine A point  
49 four (249A.4), subsection eight (8), unnumbered  
50 paragraph two (2), Code 1975, is amended by striking

1 the paragraph and inserting in lieu thereof the  
2 following:

3 For attending each council meeting the  
4 nonlegislative members shall be reimbursed for their  
5 actual and necessary expenses and shall receive a  
6 forty-dollar per diem. The legislative members shall  
7 receive per diem and expenses pursuant to section  
8 two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve  
9 (2.12) of the Code.

10 Sec. 10. Section two hundred forty-nine B point  
11 six (249B.6), Code 1975, is amended by striking the  
12 section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

13 249B.6 EXPENSES. Nonlegislative members of the  
14 commission while engaged in their official duties  
15 shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary  
16 expenses and be paid a forty-dollar per diem.  
17 Legislative members of the commission shall receive  
18 expenses only pursuant to section two point ten (2.10)  
19 and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

20 Sec. 11. Section two hundred sixty-one point four  
21 (261.4), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

22 261.4 FUNDS--COMPTROLLER--COMPENSATION AND  
23 EXPENSES OF COMMISSION. The state comptroller shall  
24 keep an accounting of all funds received and expended  
25 by the commission. The nonlegislative members of  
26 the commission, except those members who are employees  
27 of the state, shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem  
28 and shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary  
29 expenses. All per diem and expense moneys paid to  
30 nonlegislative members shall be paid from funds  
31 appropriated to the commission. Legislative members  
32 of the commission shall receive expenses only pursuant  
33 to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point  
34 twelve (2.12) of the Code.

35 Sec. 12. Section two hundred seventy-two B point  
36 two (272B.2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

37 272B.2 EDUCATION COMMISSION OF THE STATES. The  
38 provisions of article III, paragraph 1, of the compact  
39 notwithstanding, the members of the education  
40 commission of the states representing this state shall  
41 consist of the governor, two nonlegislative members  
42 appointed by the governor, two members of the senate  
43 appointed by the president of the senate, and two  
44 members of the house of representatives appointed  
45 by the speaker of the house of representatives. The  
46 members shall serve four-year terms and for the initial  
47 appointments, half of the membership shall be appointed  
48 to two-year terms and half shall be appointed to four-  
49 year terms. Members Nonlegislative members shall  
50 serve on the education commission of the states without

1 compensation, but shall receive their actual and  
2 necessary expenses and travel. Legislative members  
3 shall receive actual and necessary expenses and travel  
4 pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and two point  
5 twelve (2.12) of the Code. Vacancies on the commission  
6 shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term  
7 in the same manner as the original appointment. If  
8 a member ceases to be a member of the general assembly,  
9 he shall no longer serve as a member of the education  
10 commission of the states.

11 Sec. 13. Section three hundred four point four  
12 (304.4), Code 1975, is amended by striking the section  
13 and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

14 The nonlegislative members of the commission shall  
15 serve without compensation but may receive their  
16 actual expenses incurred in the performance of their  
17 duties. Legislative members shall receive per diem  
18 and expenses pursuant to section two point ten (2.10)  
19 and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

20 Sec. 14. Section seven hundred forty-nine 3 point  
21 nineteen (749B.19), unnumbered paragraph two (2),  
22 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

23 The council shall meet at least annually and at  
24 any other time upon the call of the governor, the  
25 chairman of the council, or any three of its members.  
26 Each nonlegislative council member shall be entitled  
27 to reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses  
28 incurred in the performance of official duties from  
29 funds appropriated to the department of public safety.  
30 Each legislative member shall receive expenses only  
31 pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section  
32 two point twelve (2.12) of the Code."

S-3967 FILED  
MAY 28, 1975

RECEIVED FROM THE HOUSE

*Senate refused to concur 6/2 (1662)  
House insisted 6/9 (2242)*

H-3882

1 Amend House amendment H-3868 amending Senate File  
2 507, as passed by the Senate, as follows:  
3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 50 the  
4 following:  
5 "Sec. \_\_\_\_ . NEW SECTION. The speaker of the house  
6 shall appoint a steering committee of fifteen members  
7 upon the twentieth legislative day of the session.  
8 The steering committee shall have charge of all bills  
9 that are on the calendar and shall daily arrange the  
10 bills for consideration of the house. Each two weeks  
11 thereafter the speaker shall appoint a new steering  
12 committee."  
13 2. By renumbering the sections and correcting  
14 internal references to conform with this amendment.

H-3882 FILED *Revised with german 7/23 (1975)* BY MILLER of Buchanan  
MAY 19, 1975

H-3883

1 Amend House amendment H-3868 amending Senate File  
2 507, as passed by the Senate, as follows:  
3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 50 the  
4 following:  
5 "Sec. \_\_\_\_ . Section two point forty-two (2.42),  
6 subsection four (4), Code 1975, is amended to read  
7 as follows:  
8 4. To appoint interim study committees consisting  
9 of members of the legislative council and members  
10 of the general assembly of such number as the council  
11 shall determine. However, the council shall not  
12 appoint to an interim study committee a member of  
13 the general assembly who sponsored the resolution  
14 authorizing that interim study committee nor shall  
15 the council appoint a member of the general assembly  
16 who has previously served on an interim study committee  
17 until every member of the general assembly who has  
18 not previously served on an interim study committee  
19 has been offered an opportunity to so serve.  
20 Nonlegislative members may be included on such  
21 committees when the council deems the participation  
22 of such members advantageous to the conduct of the  
23 study."  
24 2. By renumbering the sections and correcting  
25 internal references to conform with this amendment.

H-3883 FILED *sent 5/23 (1975)* BY MILLER of Buchanan  
MAY 19, 1975

1 Amend House amendment H-3868 amending Senate File  
2 507 as passed by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 50 the  
4 following:

5 "Sec. \_\_\_\_ . Section two point forty-two (2.42),  
6 subsection four (4), Code 1975, is amended to read  
7 as follows:

8 4. To appoint interim study committees consisting  
9 of members of the legislative council and members  
10 of the general assembly of such number as the council  
11 shall determine. However, the council shall not  
12 appoint a member of the general assembly who has  
13 previously served on an interim study committee or  
14 who is serving on the council or its committees and  
15 subcommittees or a study committee and subcommittee  
16 of a standing committee, until every member of the  
17 general assembly who has not previously served on  
18 an interim study committee has been offered an  
19 opportunity to so serve. Nonlegislative members may  
20 be included on such committees when the council deems  
21 the participation of such members advantageous to  
22 the conduct of the study."

23 2. By renumbering the sections and correcting  
24 internal references to conform with this amendment.

H-3886 FILED - *Law 5/23 (1982)*  
MAY 19, 1975

BY MILLER of Buchanan

1 Amend Senate File 507, as passed by the Senate,  
2 as follows:

3 1. Page 2, by inserting after line 4 the following:

4 "Sec. \_\_\_\_ . Section two point forty-two (2.42),  
5 subsection four (4), Code 1975, is amended to read  
6 as follows:

7 4. To appoint interim study committees consisting  
8 of members of the legislative council and members  
9 of the general assembly of such number as the council  
10 shall determine. However, the council shall not  
11 appoint to an interim study committee a member of  
12 the general assembly who sponsored the resolution  
13 authorizing that interim study committee nor shall  
14 the council appoint a member of the general assembly  
15 who has previously served on an interim study committee  
16 until every member of the general assembly who has  
17 not previously served on an interim study committee  
18 has been offered an opportunity to so serve.  
19 Nonlegislative members may be included on such  
20 committees when the council deems the participation  
21 of such members advantageous to the conduct of the  
22 study."

23 2. By renumbering the sections and correcting  
24 internal references to conform with this amendment.

H-3900 FILED - *Bill no of arch with*  
MAY 20, 1975 *adoption of 3868 5/23 (1982)*

BY MILLER of Buchanan

H-3868

1 Amend Senate File 507, as passed by the Senate,  
2 as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by striking all after the enacting  
4 clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:  
5 "Section 1. Section two point ten (2.10),  
6 subsection six (6), Code 1975, is amended to read  
7 as follows:

8 6. In addition to the salaries and expenses herein  
9 authorized by this section, members of the general  
10 assembly shall be paid forty dollars per day, except  
11 the speaker of the house who shall be paid sixty  
12 dollars per day, and necessary travel and actual  
13 expenses incurred in attending meetings for which  
14 per diem or expenses are authorized by law for members  
15 of the general assembly who serve on statutory boards,  
16 commissions, or councils, and for standing or interim  
17 committee or subcommittee meetings subject to the  
18 provisions of section 2.14, or when on official-state  
19 authorized legislative business, when the general  
20 assembly is not in session. However, if a member  
21 of the general assembly or the lieutenant governor  
22 is engaged in authorized legislative business at a  
23 location other than at the seat of government during  
24 the time the general assembly is in session, payment  
25 may be made for the actual transportation and lodging  
26 costs incurred because of the business. Such salaries  
27 per diem or expenses shall be paid promptly from funds  
28 appropriated pursuant to section 2.12,--unless-otherwise  
29 provided-by-law.

30 Sec. 2. Section two point twelve (2.12), unnumbered  
31 paragraph two (2), Code 1975, is amended to read as  
32 follows:

33 There is hereby appropriated out of any funds in  
34 the state treasury not otherwise appropriated, such  
35 sums as may be necessary, for each house of the general  
36 assembly for the payment of any unpaid expense filed  
37 ~~after adjournment of each annual session~~ of the general  
38 assembly or incurred during or in the interim between  
39 sessions of the general assembly, including but not  
40 limited to salaries and necessary travel and actual  
41 expenses of members and expenses of standing and  
42 interim committees or subcommittees and per diem or  
43 expenses for members of the general assembly who serve  
44 on statutory boards, commissions, or councils for  
45 which per diem or expenses are authorized by law.  
46 The state comptroller is hereby authorized and directed  
47 to issue warrants for such items of expense upon  
48 requisition of the president and secretary of the  
49 senate for senate expense or the speaker and chief  
50 clerk of the house for house expense.

1       Sec. 3. Section two point forty-four (2.44), Code  
2 1975, is amended to read as follows:

3       2.44 EXPENSES OF COUNCIL AND SPECIAL INTERIM  
4 COMMITTEES. Members of the legislative council shall  
5 be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses  
6 incurred in the performance of their duties, and shall  
7 receive a per diem of forty dollars for each day in  
8 which engaged in the performance of such duties.  
9 However, such per diem compensation and expenses shall  
10 not be paid when the general assembly is actually  
11 in session at the seat of government. Such expenses  
12 and per diem shall be paid in the manner provided  
13 for in section 2.66 two point twelve (2.12) of the  
14 Code.

15       Members of special interim study committees which  
16 may from time to time be created and members of the  
17 legislative fiscal committee who are not members of  
18 the legislative council shall be entitled to receive  
19 the same expenses and compensation provided for the  
20 members of the legislative council. ~~Such expenses~~  
21 ~~shall be paid in the manner provided for in section~~  
22 ~~2.66 within the limit of available funds. -- Upon motion~~  
23 ~~approved by the legislative council, members of such~~  
24 ~~special interim study committees may be paid for their~~  
25 ~~expenses and per diem pursuant to the provisions of~~  
26 ~~section 2.12.~~

27       Sec. 4. Section two point sixty-six (2.66), Code  
28 1975, is amended to read as follows:

29       2.66 OFFICE AND SUPPLIES--EXPENSES. The office  
30 of the service bureau shall be located in the  
31 statehouse. Supplies, postage, and equipment may  
32 be requisitioned from the ~~executive council~~ department  
33 of general services. ~~Per diem and expenses~~ Expenses  
34 of the legislative council, special interim study  
35 committees, and service bureau shall be paid upon  
36 the approval of the director of the bureau and, if  
37 an extraordinary expense, upon the approval of the  
38 legislative council or its chairman.

39       Sec. 5. Section eighteen A point five (18A.5),  
40 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

41       18A.5 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. The  
42 nonlegislative members of the commission shall be  
43 reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses  
44 and shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem while in  
45 attendance at any meeting of the commission held at  
46 the seat of government and shall be reimbursed for  
47 their expenses for going to and from the seat of  
48 government to attend a meeting. All per diem and  
49 expense moneys paid to the nonlegislative commissioners  
50 shall be paid from funds appropriated to the

1 commission. Service of the director of the department  
2 of general services and the state architect upon this  
3 commission shall be an additional duty conferred by  
4 statute. Legislative members of the commission shall  
5 receive expenses only pursuant to section two point  
6 ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of  
7 the Code.

8 Sec. 6. Section eighty B point eight (80B.8),  
9 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

10 80B.8 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. The  
11 nonlegislative members of the council, who are not  
12 employees of the state or a political subdivision,  
13 shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem. All members  
14 of the council shall be reimbursed for necessary and  
15 actual expenses incurred in attending meetings and  
16 in the performance of their duties. All per diem  
17 and expense moneys paid to nonlegislative members  
18 shall be paid from funds appropriated to the Iowa  
19 law enforcement academy. Legislative members of the  
20 council shall receive expenses only pursuant to section  
21 two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve  
22 (2.12) of the Code.

23 Sec. 7. Section ninety-three point five (93.5),  
24 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

25 93.5 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. ~~Council~~  
26 Nonlegislative council members who are not employees  
27 of the state shall receive a per diem at the rate  
28 of forty dollars for each day devoted to council  
29 business and all nonlegislative members shall be  
30 reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in carrying  
31 out their duties as members of the council.  
32 Legislative members shall receive expenses only  
33 pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section  
34 two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

35 Sec. 8. Section two hundred thirty-five A point  
36 twenty-four (235A.24), subsection two (2), Code 1975,  
37 is amended to read as follows:

38 2. The council shall meet at least annually and  
39 at any other time upon the call of the chairman of  
40 the council, or any three of its members. Each  
41 nonlegislative council member shall be entitled to  
42 reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses  
43 incurred in the performance of official duties from  
44 funds appropriated to the department of social  
45 services. Each legislative member shall receive  
46 expenses only pursuant to section two point ten (2.10)  
47 and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

48 Sec. 9. Section two hundred forty-nine A point  
49 four (249A.4), subsection eight (8), unnumbered  
50 paragraph two (2), Code 1975, is amended by striking

1 the paragraph and inserting in lieu thereof the  
2 following:

3 For attending each council meeting the  
4 nonlegislative members shall be reimbursed for their  
5 actual and necessary expenses and shall receive a  
6 forty-dollar per diem. The legislative members shall  
7 receive per diem and expenses pursuant to section  
8 two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve  
9 (2.12) of the Code.

10 Sec. 10. Section two hundred forty-nine B point  
11 six (249B.6), Code 1975, is amended by striking the  
12 section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

13 249B.6 EXPENSES. Nonlegislative members of the  
14 commission while engaged in their official duties  
15 shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary  
16 expenses and be paid a forty-dollar per diem.  
17 Legislative members of the commission shall receive  
18 expenses only pursuant to section two point ten (2.10)  
19 and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

20 Sec. 11. Section two hundred sixty-one point four  
21 (261.4), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

22 261.4 FUNDS--COMPTROLLER--COMPENSATION AND  
23 EXPENSES OF COMMISSION. The state comptroller shall  
24 keep an accounting of all funds received and expended  
25 by the commission. The nonlegislative members of  
26 the commission, except those members who are employees  
27 of the state, shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem  
28 and shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary  
29 expenses. All per diem and expense moneys paid to  
30 nonlegislative members shall be paid from funds  
31 appropriated to the commission. Legislative members  
32 of the commission shall receive expenses only pursuant  
33 to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point  
34 twelve (2.12) of the Code.

35 Sec. 12. Section two hundred seventy-two B point  
36 two (272B.2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

37 272B.2 EDUCATION COMMISSION OF THE STATES. The  
38 provisions of article III, paragraph 1, of the compact  
39 notwithstanding, the members of the education  
40 commission of the states representing this state shall  
41 consist of the governor, two nonlegislative members  
42 appointed by the governor, two members of the senate  
43 appointed by the president of the senate, and two  
44 members of the house of representatives appointed  
45 by the speaker of the house of representatives. The  
46 members shall serve four-year terms and for the initial  
47 appointments, half of the membership shall be appointed  
48 to two-year terms and half shall be appointed to four-  
49 year terms. Members Nonlegislative members shall  
50 serve on the education commission of the states without

1 compensation, but shall receive their actual and  
2 necessary expenses and travel. Legislative members  
3 shall receive actual and necessary expenses and travel  
4 pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and two point  
5 twelve (2.12) of the Code. Vacancies on the commission  
6 shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term  
7 in the same manner as the original appointment. If  
8 a member ceases to be a member of the general assembly,  
9 he shall no longer serve as a member of the education  
10 commission of the states.

11 Sec. 13. Section three hundred four point four  
12 (304.4), Code 1975, is amended by striking the section  
13 and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

14 The nonlegislative members of the commission shall  
15 serve without compensation but may receive their  
16 actual expenses incurred in the performance of their  
17 duties. Legislative members shall receive per diem  
18 and expenses pursuant to section two point ten (2.10)  
19 and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

20 Sec. 14. Section seven hundred forty-nine B point  
21 nineteen (749B.19), unnumbered paragraph two (2),  
22 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

23 The council shall meet at least annually and at  
24 any other time upon the call of the governor, the  
25 chairman of the council, or any three of its members.  
26 Each nonlegislative council member shall be entitled  
27 to reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses  
28 incurred in the performance of official duties from  
29 funds appropriated to the department of public safety.  
30 Each legislative member shall receive expenses only  
31 pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section  
32 two point twelve (2.12) of the Code."

H-3868 FILED - *Adopted 5/23 (1932)*  
MAY 15, 1975

BY MONROE of Des Moines

H-3869

1 Amend the Monroe amendment H-3868 to Senate File  
2 507, as passed by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 3, line 5, by striking the word "only"  
4 and inserting in lieu thereof the words "and per diem".

5 2. Page 3, line 20, by striking the word "only"  
6 and inserting in lieu thereof the words "and per diem".

7 3. Page 3, line 32, by striking the word "only"  
8 and inserting in lieu thereof the words "and per diem".

9 4. Page 3, line 46, by striking the word "only"  
10 and inserting in lieu thereof the words "and per diem".

11 5. Page 4, line 18, by striking the word "only"  
12 and inserting in lieu thereof the words "and per diem".

13 6. Page 4, line 32, by striking the word "only"  
14 and inserting in lieu thereof the words "and per diem".

15 7. Page 5, line 3, by inserting after the word  
16 "expenses" the words ", per diem".

17 8. Page 5, line 30, by striking the word "only"  
18 and inserting in lieu thereof the words "and per diem".

H-3869 FILED - *H. Johnson 5/23 (1932)*  
MAY 19, 1975

BY OAKLEY of Clinton

1 Amend the Monroe amendment H-3868, to Senate  
2 File 507 as passed by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 4 the  
4 following new section:

5 "Section 1. Section two point ten (2.10), sub-  
6 section one (1), Code 1975, is amended to read as  
7 follows:

8 1. Every member of the general assembly except  
9 the speaker of the house and majority and minority  
10 floor leaders of the senate and house shall receive  
11 an annual salary of eight thousand dollars for each  
12 year while serving as a member of the general  
13 assembly. The majority and minority floor leaders  
14 of the senate and house shall receive an annual salary  
15 of nine thousand five hundred dollars for each year  
16 while serving in such capacity. In addition, each  
17 such member shall receive the sum of twenty dollars  
18 per day for expenses of office, except travel, for  
19 each day the general assembly is actually in session  
20 ~~commencing with the first day of a legislative session~~  
21 ~~and ending with the day of final adjournment of each~~  
22 ~~legislative session as indicated by the journals of~~  
23 ~~the house and senate.~~ However, members from Polk  
24 county shall receive ten dollars per day. The  
25 expenses of office shall not be paid for more than  
26 one hundred days for each regular session and a total  
27 of two hundred days for a biennium. Travel expenses  
28 shall be paid at the rate established by section 79.9  
29 for actual travel in going to and returning from the  
30 seat of government by the nearest traveled route  
31 for not more than one time per week during a legis-  
32 lative session. However, any increase from time to  
33 time in the mileage rate established by section 79.9  
34 shall not become effective for members of the general  
35 assembly until the convening of the next general  
36 assembly following the session in which the increase  
37 is adopted; and this provision shall prevail over  
38 any inconsistent provision of any present or future  
39 statute."

40 2. Page 5, by inserting after line 32 the  
41 following:

42 "2. By renumbering the sections to conform with  
43 this amendment."

1 Amend the Monroe Amendment (H-3868) to Senate File  
2 507, as passed by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 4 the following:  
4 "Sec. \_\_. Section two point ten (2.10), subsection  
5 one (1), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

6 1. Every member of the general assembly except  
7 the speaker of the house and majority and minority  
8 floor leaders of the senate and house shall receive  
9 an annual salary of eight thousand dollars for each  
10 year while serving as a member of the general assembly.  
11 The majority and minority floor leaders of the senate  
12 and house shall receive an annual salary of nine  
13 thousand five hundred dollars for each year while  
14 serving in such capacity. In addition, each such  
15 member shall receive the sum of twenty dollars per  
16 day for expenses of office, except travel, for each  
17 day the general assembly is in session ~~commencing~~  
18 ~~with the first day of a legislative session and ending~~  
19 ~~with the day of final adjournment of each legislative~~  
20 ~~session as indicated by the journals of the house~~  
21 ~~and senate.~~ However, members from Polk county shall  
22 receive ten dollars per day. The expenses of office  
23 shall not be paid for more than one hundred days for  
24 each regular session and a total of two hundred days  
25 for a biennium. Travel expenses shall be paid at  
26 the rate established by section 79.9 for actual travel  
27 in going to and returning from the seat of government  
28 by the nearest traveled route for not more than one  
29 time per week during a legislative session. However,  
30 any increase from time to time in the mileage rate  
31 established by section 79.9 shall not become effective  
32 for members of the general assembly until the convening  
33 of the next general assembly following the session  
34 in which the increase is adopted; and this provision  
35 shall prevail over any inconsistent provision of any  
36 present or future statute."

37 2. Renumber sections and correct internal  
38 references in conformance with this amendment.

H-3941 FILED, RULED NOT  
GERMANE, MOTION TO SUSPEND  
RULES, LOST (1927)  
MAY 23, 1975

BY WELDEN of Hardin  
BENNETT of Ida

H-3901

1 Amend Senate File 507, as passed by the Senate,  
2 as follows:  
3 1. Page 2, by inserting after line 4 the following:  
4 "Sec. \_\_\_\_ . NEW SECTION. The speaker of the house  
5 shall appoint a steering committee of fifteen members  
6 upon the twentieth legislative day of the session.  
7 The steering committee shall have charge of all bills  
8 that are on the calendar and shall daily arrange the  
9 bills for consideration of the house. Each two weeks  
10 thereafter the speaker shall appoint a new steering  
11 committee."  
12 2. By renumbering the sections and correcting  
13 internal references to conform with this amendment.

H-3901 FILED - *Pulled out of order with* BY MILLER of Buchanan  
MAY 20, 1975 *adoption of 3868 5/23 (1932)*

Senate File 507

H-3902

1 Amend Senate File 507 as passed by the Senate,  
2 as follows:  
3 1. Page 2, by inserting after line 4 the following:  
4 "Sec. \_\_\_\_ . Section two point forty-two (2.42),  
5 subsection four (4), Code 1975, is amended to read  
6 as follows:  
7 4. To appoint interim study committees consisting  
8 of members of the legislative council and members  
9 of the general assembly of such number as the council  
10 shall determine. However, the council shall not  
11 appoint a member of the general assembly who has  
12 previously served on an interim study committee or  
13 who is serving on the council or its committees and  
14 subcommittees or a study committee and subcommittee  
15 of a standing committee, until every member of the  
16 general assembly who has not previously served on  
17 an interim study committee has been offered an  
18 opportunity to so serve. Nonlegislative members may  
19 be included on such committees when the council deems  
20 the participation of such members advantageous to  
21 the conduct of the study."  
22 2. By renumbering the sections and correcting  
23 internal references to conform with this amendment.

H-3902 FILED - *Pulled out of order with* BY MILLER of Buchanan  
MAY 20, 1975 *adoption of 3868 5/23 (1932)*

1 Amend the Monroe amendment H-3868 to Senate File  
2 507, as passed by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 3, by inserting after line 22 the  
4 following:

5 "Sec. \_\_\_\_ . Section ninety-three point two (93.2),  
6 Code 1975, as amended by Senate File 214, Acts of  
7 the Sixty-sixth General Assembly, 1975 Session, is  
8 amended to read as follows:

9 93.2 ESTABLISHMENT. There is established an  
10 energy policy council which shall consist of ~~fifteen~~  
11 seventeen members. Two members shall be appointed  
12 by the president of the senate from the membership  
13 of the senate with no more than one member being  
14 appointed from the same political party. Two members  
15 shall be appointed by the speaker of the house of  
16 representatives from the members of the house with  
17 no more than one member being appointed from the same  
18 political party. The governor shall appoint ~~five~~  
19 seven members who shall be reasonably knowledgeable  
20 in the field of energy. Not more than ~~three~~ four  
21 of the governor's appointees shall be of the same  
22 political party. They shall be subject to confirmation  
23 by two-thirds of the membership of the senate. The  
24 state geologist, the secretary of agriculture, the  
25 chairman of the Iowa state commerce commission, the  
26 administrative officer of the state soil conservation  
27 committee, the director of transportation, ~~and~~ the  
28 executive director of environmental quality and  
29 legislative members shall serve as ex officio nonvoting  
30 members of the council. If a nonlegislative ex officio  
31 nonvoting member is unable to attend a meeting of  
32 the council, the member shall designate a replacement  
33 who shall be authorized to represent the member at  
34 the meeting."

35 2. Page 3, line 32, by striking the word "only"  
36 and inserting in lieu thereof the words "and per  
37 diem".

38 3. By renumbering the sections and correcting  
39 internal references to conform with this amendment.

1 Amend Senate File 507, as passed by the Senate,  
2 as follows:

3 1. Page 4, by striking lines 5 through 23 and  
4 inserting in lieu thereof the following:

5 "Sec. \_\_\_\_\_ Section ninety-three point two  
6 (93.2), Code 1975, as amended by Senate File 214,  
7 Acts of the Sixty-sixth General Assembly, 1975 Session,  
8 is amended to read as follows:

9 93.2 ESTABLISHMENT. There is established an  
10 energy policy council which shall consist of fifteen  
11 ~~eleven~~ members. ~~Two members shall be appointed by~~  
12 ~~the president of the senate from the membership of~~  
13 ~~the senate with no more than one member being appointed~~  
14 ~~from the same political party. Two members shall~~  
15 ~~be appointed by the speaker of the house of~~  
16 ~~representatives from the members of the house with~~  
17 ~~no more than one member being appointed from the same~~  
18 ~~political party.~~ The governor shall appoint five  
19 members who shall be reasonably knowledgeable in the  
20 field of energy. Not more than three of the governor's  
21 appointees shall be of the same political party.  
22 They shall be subject to confirmation by two-thirds  
23 of the membership of the senate. The state geologist,  
24 the secretary of agriculture, the chairman of the  
25 Iowa state commerce commission, the administrative  
26 officer of the state soil conservation committee,  
27 the director of transportation and the executive  
28 director of environmental quality shall serve as ex  
29 officio nonvoting members of the council. If an ex  
30 officio nonvoting member is unable to attend a meeting  
31 of the council, the member shall designate a  
32 replacement who shall be authorized to represent the  
33 member at the meeting."

H-3906 FILED *Filed under order with* BY OAKLEY of Clinton  
MAY 20, 1975 *adoption of 2863 5/23/75*

1 Amend Senate File 507, as passed by the Senate,  
2 page 4, by striking all of lines 5 through 23 and  
3 inserting in lieu thereof the following:  
4 "Sec. 8. Section ninety-three point two (93.2),  
5 Code 1975, as amended by Senate File 214, Acts of  
6 the Sixty-sixth General Assembly, 1975 Session, is  
7 amended to read as follows:  
8 93.2 ESTABLISHMENT. There is established an  
9 energy policy council which shall consist of ~~fifteen~~  
10 seventeen members. Two members shall be appointed  
11 by the president of the senate from the membership  
12 of the senate with no more than one member being  
13 appointed from the same political party. Two members  
14 shall be appointed by the speaker of the house of  
15 representatives from the members of the house with  
16 no more than one member being appointed from the same  
17 political party. The governor shall appoint ~~five~~  
18 seven members who shall be reasonably knowledgeable  
19 in the field of energy. Not more than ~~three~~ four  
20 of the governor's appointees shall be of the same  
21 political party. They shall be subject to confirmation  
22 by two-thirds of the membership of the senate. The  
23 state geologist, the secretary of agriculture, the  
24 chairman of the Iowa state commerce commission, the  
25 administrative officer of the state soil conservation  
26 committee, the director of transportation, ~~and~~ the  
27 executive director of environmental quality and  
28 legislative members shall serve as ex officio nonvoting  
29 members of the council. If a nonlegislative ex officio  
30 nonvoting member is unable to attend a meeting of  
31 the council, the member shall designate a replacement  
32 who shall be authorized to represent the member at  
33 the meeting."

H-3903 FILED - *Revised out of order with* BY OAKLEY of Clinton  
MAY 20, 1975 *adoption of 2868 5/23 (1972)*

May 29, 1976

REPORT OF THE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE  
ON SENATE FILE 507

To the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives:

We, the undersigned members of the conference committee appointed to consider the differences between the Senate and the House of Representatives on Senate File 507, a bill for an Act relating to the funding, compensation, expenses and membership of legislative members of committees and certain statutory or appointive boards, commissions, and councils, respectfully make the following report:

1. That the Senate and House conferees have failed to reach an agreement.

ON THE PART OF THE SENATE:

EUGENE M. HILL

C. JOSEPH COLEMAN

GENE W. GLENN

WARREN E. CURTIS

FORREST V. SCHWENGELS

ON THE PART OF THE HOUSE:

GREGORY D. CUSACK

NORMAN G. JESSE

JACK E. WOODS

BRICE C. OAKLEY

GLENN F. BROCKETT

FILED

REPORT OF THE SECOND CONFERENCE COMMITTEE  
ON SENATE FILE 507

To the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives:

We, the undersigned members of the second conference committee appointed to consider the differences between the Senate and the House of Representatives on Senate File 507, a bill for an Act relating to the funding, compensation, expenses and membership of legislative members of committees and certain statutory or appointive boards, commissions, and councils, respectfully make the following report:

1. That the House recede from its amendment, S-3764, to Senate File 507, as amended and passed by the Senate.

2. That Senate File 507, as amended and passed by the Senate, be amended as follows:

1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

*Senate adopted 5/28/76 (p. 2477)  
House adopted 5/29/76 (3375)*

1 "Section 1. Section two point ten (2.10), subsection six  
2 (6), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

3 6. In addition to the salaries and expenses herein  
4 authorized by this section, members of the general assembly  
5 shall be paid forty dollars per day, except the speaker of  
6 the house who shall be paid sixty dollars per day, and  
7 necessary travel and actual expenses incurred in attending  
8 meetings for which per diem or expenses are authorized by  
9 law for members of the general assembly who serve on statutory  
10 boards, commissions, or councils, and for standing or interim  
11 committee or subcommittee meetings subject to the provisions  
12 of section 2.14, or when on official-state authorized  
13 legislative business, when the general assembly is not in  
14 session. However, if a member of the general assembly or  
15 the lieutenant governor is engaged in authorized legislative  
16 business at a location other than at the seat of government  
17 during the time the general assembly is in session, payment  
18 may be made for the actual transportation and lodging costs  
19 incurred because of the business. Such salaries per diem or  
20 expenses shall be paid promptly from funds appropriated  
21 pursuant to section 2.12, ~~unless otherwise provided by law.~~

22 Sec. 2. Section two point twelve (2.12), unnumbered  
23 paragraph two (2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

24 There is hereby appropriated out of any funds in the state  
25 treasury not otherwise appropriated, such sums as may be  
26 necessary, for each house of the general assembly for the  
27 payment of any unpaid expense ~~filed after adjournment of each~~  
28 ~~annual session~~ of the general assembly ~~or~~ incurred during  
29 or in the interim between sessions of the general assembly,  
30 including but not limited to salaries and necessary travel  
31 and actual expenses of members and expenses of standing and  
32 interim committees or subcommittees and per diem or expenses  
33 for members of the general assembly who serve on statutory  
34 boards, commissions, or councils for which per diem or expenses  
5 are authorized by law. The state comptroller is hereby

1 authorized and directed to issue warrants for such items of  
2 expense upon requisition of the president and secretary of  
3 the senate for senate expense or the speaker and chief clerk  
4 of the house for house expense.

5 Sec. 3. Section two point forty-four (2.44), Code 1975,  
6 is amended to read as follows:

7 2.44 EXPENSES OF COUNCIL AND SPECIAL INTERIM COMMITTEES.

8 Members of the legislative council shall be reimbursed for  
9 actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance  
10 of their duties, and shall receive a per diem of forty dollars  
11 for each day in which engaged in the performance of such  
12 duties. However, such per diem compensation and expenses  
13 shall not be paid when the general assembly is actually in  
14 session at the seat of government. Such expenses and per  
15 diem shall be paid in the manner provided for in section 2-66  
16 two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

17 Members of special interim study committees which may from  
18 time to time be created and members of the legislative fiscal  
19 committee who are not members of the legislative council shall  
20 be entitled to receive the same expenses and compensation  
21 provided for the members of the legislative council. Such  
22 ~~expenses shall be paid in the manner provided for in section~~  
23 ~~2-66 within the limit of available funds. -- Upon motion approved~~  
24 ~~by the legislative council, members of such special interim~~  
25 ~~study committees may be paid for their expenses and per diem~~  
26 ~~pursuant to the provisions of section 2-12.~~

27 Sec. 4. Section eighteen A point one (18A.1), Code 1975,  
28 is amended to read as follows:

29 18A.1 COMMISSION CREATED. There is hereby created the  
30 capitol planning commission composed of nine members: (1)  
31 four members of the general assembly serving as ex officio  
32 nonvoting members, two thereof to be appointed by the speaker  
33 of the house from the membership thereof, two to be appointed  
34 by the lieutenant governor from the membership of the senate,  
35 and (2) three residents of the state of Iowa to be appointed

1 by the governor, and (3) the director of the department of  
2 general services or his designee and the state architect  
3 provided by section 218.58.

4 Sec. 5. Section eighteen A point five (18A.5), Code 1975,  
5 is amended to read as follows:

6 18A.5 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. The members of the  
7 commission shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary  
8 expenses and shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem while in  
9 attendance at any meeting of the commission held at the seat  
10 of government and shall be reimbursed for their expenses for  
11 going to and from the seat of government to attend a meeting.  
12 All per diem and expense moneys paid to the nonlegislative  
13 commissioners shall be paid from funds appropriated to the  
14 commission. Service of the director of the department of  
15 general services and the state architect upon this commission  
16 shall be an additional duty conferred by statute. Legislative  
17 members of the commission shall receive payment pursuant to  
18 section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve  
19 (2.12) of the Code.

20 Sec. 6. Section eighty B point six (80B.6), subsections  
21 two (2) and three (3), Code 1975, are amended to read as  
22 follows:

23 2. Two members of the senate serving as ex officio  
24 nonvoting members, not more than one of whom will be from  
25 the same political party, appointed by the lieutenant governor  
26 for a term of four years commencing on August 15, 1974.

27 3. Two members of the house of representatives serving  
28 as ex officio nonvoting members, not more than one of whom  
29 will be from the same political party, appointed by the speaker  
30 of the house for a term of two years commencing on August  
31 15, 1974.

32 Sec. 7. Section eighty B point eight (80B.8), Code 1975,  
33 is amended to read as follows:

34 80B.8 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. The members of the  
council, who are not employees of the state or a political

1 subdivision, shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem. All  
2 members of the council shall be reimbursed for necessary and  
3 actual expenses incurred in attending meetings and in the  
4 performance of their duties. All per diem and expense moneys  
5 paid to nonlegislative members shall be paid from funds  
6 appropriated to the Iowa law enforcement academy. Legislative  
7 members of the council shall receive payment pursuant to  
8 section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve  
9 (2.12) of the Code.

10 Sec. 8. Section ninety-three point five (93.5), Code 1975,  
11 is amended to read as follows:

12 93.5 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. Council members who are  
13 not employees of the state shall receive a per diem at the  
14 rate of forty dollars for each day devoted to council business  
15 and all nonlegislative members shall be reimbursed for actual  
16 expenses incurred in carrying out their duties as members  
17 of the council. Legislative members shall receive payment  
18 pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point  
19 twelve (2.12) of the Code.

20 Sec. 9. Section two hundred thirty-five A point twenty-  
21 four (235A.24), subsection two (2), Code 1975, is amended  
22 to read as follows:

23 2. The council shall meet at least annually and at any  
24 other time upon the call of the chairman of the council, or  
25 any three of its members. Each nonlegislative council member  
26 shall be entitled to reimbursement for actual and necessary  
27 expenses incurred in the performance of official duties from  
28 funds appropriated to the department of social services.  
29 Each legislative member shall receive expenses pursuant to  
30 section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve  
31 (2.12) of the Code.

32 Sec. 10. Section two hundred forty-nine B point one  
33 (249B.1), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

34 249B.1 COMMISSION CREATED. There is hereby created the  
35 commission on the aging of the state of Iowa which shall

1 consist of nine eleven members. Two members shall be appointed  
2 by the president of the senate from the members of the senate  
3 to serve as ex officio nonvoting members with no more than  
4 one member being appointed from the same political party.  
5 Two members shall be appointed by the speaker of the house  
6 of representatives from the members of the house to serve  
7 as ex officio nonvoting members with no more than one member  
8 being appointed from the same political party. Five Seven  
9 members shall be appointed by the governor.

10 Sec. 11. Section two hundred forty-nine B point six  
11 (249B.6), Code 1975, is amended by striking the section and  
12 inserting in lieu thereof the following:

13 249B.6 EXPENSES. Members of the commission while engaged  
14 in their official duties shall be reimbursed for their actual  
15 and necessary expenses and be paid a forty-dollar per diem.  
16 Legislative members of the commission shall receive payment  
17 pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point  
18 twelve (2.12) of the Code.

19 Sec. 12. Section two hundred sixty-one point one (261.1),  
20 subsections four (4) and five (5), Code 1975, are amended  
21 to read as follows:

22 4. A member of the senate to be appointed by the president  
23 of the senate to serve as an ex officio nonvoting member for  
24 a term of four years beginning on July 4 first of the year  
25 of appointment.

26 5. A member of the house of representatives to be appointed  
27 by the speaker of the house to serve as an ex officio nonvoting  
28 member for a term of four years beginning on July 4 first  
29 of the year of appointment.

30 Sec. 13. Section two hundred sixty-one point four (261.4),  
31 Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

32 261.4 FUNDS--COMPTROLLER--COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES OF  
33 COMMISSION. The state comptroller shall keep an accounting  
34 of all funds received and expended by the commission. The  
members of the commission, except those members who are

1 employees of the state, shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem  
2 and shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses.  
3 All per diem and expense moneys paid to nonlegislative members  
4 shall be paid from funds appropriated to the commission.  
5 Legislative members of the commission shall receive payment  
6 pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point  
7 twelve (2.12) of the Code.

8 Sec. 14. Section two hundred seventy-two B point two  
9 (272B.2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:  
10 272B.2 EDUCATION COMMISSION OF THE STATES. The provisions  
11 of article III, paragraph 1, of the compact notwithstanding,  
12 the members of the education commission of the states  
13 representing this state shall consist of the governor, two  
14 nonlegislative members appointed by the governor, two members  
15 of the senate appointed by the president of the senate, and  
16 two members of the house of representatives appointed by the  
17 speaker of the house of representatives. The members shall  
18 serve four-year terms and for the initial appointments, half  
19 of the membership shall be appointed to two-year terms and  
20 half shall be appointed to four-year terms. Members  
21 Nonlegislative members shall serve on the education commission  
22 of the states without compensation, but shall receive their  
23 actual and necessary expenses and travel. Legislative members  
24 shall receive actual and necessary expenses and travel pursuant  
25 to section two point ten (2.10) and two point twelve (2.12)  
26 of the Code. Vacancies on the commission shall be filled  
27 for the unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as  
28 the original appointment. If a member ceases to be a member  
29 of the general assembly, he shall no longer serve as a member  
30 of the education commission of the states.

31 Sec. 15. Section three hundred four point three (304.3),  
32 subsection six (6), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

33 6. A member of the general assembly serving as an ex  
34 officio nonvoting member appointed by the legislative council.

35 Sec. 16. Section three hundred four point four (304.4),

Code 1975, is amended by striking the section and inserting  
in lieu thereof the following:

The nonlegislative members of the commission shall serve without compensation but may receive their actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. Legislative members shall receive per diem and expenses pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

Sec. 17. Section seven hundred forty-nine B point nineteen (749B.19), unnumbered paragraph one (1) and two (2), Code 1975, are amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a confidential records council consisting of nine regular members. Two members shall be appointed from the house of representatives to serve as ex officio nonvoting members by the speaker of the house, no more than one of whom shall be from the same party. Two members shall be appointed from the senate to serve as ex officio nonvoting members by the lieutenant governor, no more than one of whom shall be from the same party. The other members of the council shall be: A judge of the district court appointed by the chief justice of the supreme court, one local law enforcement official, appointed by the governor; the commissioner of public safety or his designee; and two private citizens not connected with law enforcement, appointed by the governor. The council shall select its own chairman. The members shall serve at the pleasure of those by whom their appointments are made.

The council shall meet at least annually and at any other time upon the call of the governor, the chairman of the council, or any three of its members. Each nonlegislative council member shall be entitled to reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of official duties from funds appropriated to the department of public safety. Each legislative member shall receive expenses pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point

1 twelve (2.12) of the Code."

2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32  
33  
34  
35

ON THE PART OF THE SENATE:  
EUGENE M. HILL, CHAIRPERSON  
C. JOSEPH COLEMAN  
GENE W. GLENN  
WARREN E. CURTIS  
FORREST V. SCHWENGELS

ON THE PART OF THE HOUSE:  
GREGORY D. CUSACK, CHAIRPERSON  
NORMAN G. JESSE  
JACK E. WOODS  
BRICE C. OAKLEY  
GLENN F. BROCKETT

CCR 507  
dsb/rh/31

## SENATE FILE 507

## AN ACT

RELATING TO THE FUNDING, COMPENSATION, EXPENSES AND MEMBERSHIP OF LEGISLATIVE MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES AND CERTAIN STATUTORY OR APPOINTIVE BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COUNCILS.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

Section 1. Section two point ten (2.10), subsection six (6), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

6. In addition to the salaries and expenses herein authorized by this section, members of the general assembly shall be paid forty dollars per day, except the speaker of the house who shall be paid sixty dollars per day, and necessary travel and actual expenses incurred in attending meetings for which per diem or expenses are authorized by law for members of the general assembly who serve on statutory boards, commissions, or councils, and for standing or interim committee or subcommittee meetings subject to the provisions of section 2.14, or when on official-state authorized legislative business, when the general assembly is not in session. However, if a member of the general assembly or the lieutenant governor is engaged in authorized legislative business at a location other than at the seat of government during the time the general assembly is in session, payment may be made for the actual transportation and lodging costs incurred because of the business. Such salaries per diem or expenses shall be paid promptly from funds appropriated pursuant to section 2.12, unless otherwise provided by law.

Sec. 2. Section two point twelve (2.12), unnumbered paragraph two (2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

There is hereby appropriated out of any funds in the state treasury not otherwise appropriated, such sums as may be necessary, for each house of the general assembly for the

payment of any unpaid expense ~~filed-after-adjourment-of-each annual-session~~ of the general assembly ~~or~~ incurred during or in the interim between sessions of the general assembly, including but not limited to salaries and necessary travel and actual expenses of members and expenses of standing and interim committees or subcommittees and per diem or expenses for members of the general assembly who serve on statutory boards, commissions, or councils for which per diem or expenses are authorized by law. The state comptroller is hereby authorized and directed to issue warrants for such items of expense upon requisition of the president and secretary of the senate for senate expense or the speaker and chief clerk of the house for house expense.

Sec. 3. Section two point forty-four (2.44), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

2.44 EXPENSES OF COUNCIL AND SPECIAL INTERIM COMMITTEES. Members of the legislative council shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties, and shall receive a per diem of forty dollars for each day in which engaged in the performance of such duties. However, such per diem compensation and expenses shall not be paid when the general assembly is actually in session at the seat of government. Such expenses and per diem shall be paid in the manner provided for in section 2-66 two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

Members of special interim study committees which may from time to time be created and members of the legislative fiscal committee who are not members of the legislative council shall be entitled to receive the same expenses and compensation provided for the members of the legislative council. ~~Such expenses shall be paid in the manner provided for in section 2-66 within the limit of available funds. Upon motion approved by the legislative council, members of such special interim study committees may be paid for their expenses and per diem pursuant to the provisions of section 2-42.~~

Sec. 4. Section eighteen A point one (18A.1), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

18A.1 COMMISSION CREATED. There is hereby created the capitol planning commission composed of nine members: (1) four members of the general assembly serving as ex officio nonvoting members, two thereof to be appointed by the speaker of the house from the membership thereof, two to be appointed by the lieutenant governor from the membership of the senate, and (2) three residents of the state of Iowa to be appointed by the governor, and (3) the director of the department of general services or his designee and the state architect provided by section 218.58.

Sec. 5. Section eighteen A point five (18A.5), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

18A.5 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. The members of the commission shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses and shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem while in attendance at any meeting of the commission held at the seat of government and shall be reimbursed for their expenses for going to and from the seat of government to attend a meeting. All per diem and expense moneys paid to the nonlegislative commissioners shall be paid from funds appropriated to the commission. Service of the director of the department of general services and the state architect upon this commission shall be an additional duty conferred by statute. Legislative members of the commission shall receive payment pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

Sec. 6. Section eighty B point six (80B.6), subsections two (2) and three (3), Code 1975, are amended to read as follows:

2. Two members of the senate serving as ex officio nonvoting members, not more than one of whom will be from the same political party, appointed by the lieutenant governor for a term of four years commencing on August 15, 1974.

3. Two members of the house of representatives serving as ex officio nonvoting members, not more than one of whom will be from the same political party, appointed by the speaker of the house for a term of two years commencing on August 15, 1974.

Sec. 7. Section eighty B point eight (80B.8), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

80B.8 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. The members of the council, who are not employees of the state or a political subdivision, shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem. All members of the council shall be reimbursed for necessary and actual expenses incurred in attending meetings and in the performance of their duties. All per diem and expense moneys paid to nonlegislative members shall be paid from funds appropriated to the Iowa law enforcement academy. Legislative members of the council shall receive payment pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

Sec. 8. Section ninety-three point five (93.5), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

93.5 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES. Council members who are not employees of the state shall receive a per diem at the rate of forty dollars for each day devoted to council business and all nonlegislative members shall be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in carrying out their duties as members of the council. Legislative members shall receive payment pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

Sec. 9. Section two hundred thirty-five A point twenty-four (235A.24), subsection two (2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

2. The council shall meet at least annually and at any other time upon the call of the chairman of the council, or any three of its members. Each nonlegislative council member shall be entitled to reimbursement for actual and necessary

expenses incurred in the performance of official duties from funds appropriated to the department of social services. Each legislative member shall receive expenses pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

Sec. 10. Section two hundred forty-nine B point one (249B.1), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

249B.1 COMMISSION CREATED. There is hereby created the commission on the aging of the state of Iowa which shall consist of ~~nine~~ eleven members. Two members shall be appointed by the president of the senate from the members of the senate to serve as ex officio nonvoting members with no more than one member being appointed from the same political party. Two members shall be appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives from the members of the house to serve as ex officio nonvoting members with no more than one member being appointed from the same political party. ~~Five~~ Seven members shall be appointed by the governor.

Sec. 11. Section two hundred forty-nine B point six (249B.6), Code 1975, is amended by striking the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

249B.6 EXPENSES. Members of the commission while engaged in their official duties shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses and be paid a forty-dollar per diem. Legislative members of the commission shall receive payment pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

Sec. 12. Section two hundred sixty-one point one (261.1), subsections four (4) and five (5), Code 1975, are amended to read as follows:

4. A member of the senate to be appointed by the president of the senate to serve as an ex officio nonvoting member for a term of four years beginning on July 4 first of the year of appointment.

5. A member of the house of representatives to be appointed

by the speaker of the house to serve as an ex officio nonvoting member for a term of four years beginning on July 4 first of the year of appointment.

Sec. 13. Section two hundred sixty-one point four (261.4), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

261.4 FUNDS--COMPTROLLER--COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES OF COMMISSION. The state comptroller shall keep an accounting of all funds received and expended by the commission. The members of the commission, except those members who are employees of the state, shall be paid a forty-dollar per diem and shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses. All per diem and expense moneys paid to nonlegislative members shall be paid from funds appropriated to the commission. Legislative members of the commission shall receive payment pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

Sec. 14. Section two hundred seventy-two B point two (272B.2), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

272B.2 EDUCATION COMMISSION OF THE STATES. The provisions of article III, paragraph 1, of the compact notwithstanding, the members of the education commission of the states representing this state shall consist of the governor, two nonlegislative members appointed by the governor, two members of the senate appointed by the president of the senate, and two members of the house of representatives appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives. The members shall serve four-year terms and for the initial appointments, half of the membership shall be appointed to two-year terms and half shall be appointed to four-year terms. ~~Members~~ Nonlegislative members shall serve on the education commission of the states without compensation, but shall receive their actual and necessary expenses and travel. Legislative members shall receive actual and necessary expenses and travel pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and two point twelve (2.12) of the Code. Vacancies on the commission shall be filled

for the unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the original appointment. If a member ceases to be a member of the general assembly, he shall no longer serve as a member of the education commission of the states.

Sec. 15. Section three hundred four point three (304.3), subsection six (6), Code 1975, is amended to read as follows:

6. A member of the general assembly serving as an ex officio nonvoting member appointed by the legislative council.

Sec. 16. Section three hundred four point four (304.4), Code 1975, is amended by striking the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

The nonlegislative members of the commission shall serve without compensation but may receive their actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. Legislative members shall receive per diem and expenses pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

Sec. 17. Section seven hundred forty-nine B point nineteen (749B.19), unnumbered paragraphs one (1) and two (2), Code 1975, are amended to read as follows:

There is hereby created a confidential records council consisting of nine regular members. Two members shall be appointed from the house of representatives to serve as ex officio nonvoting members by the speaker of the house, no more than one of whom shall be from the same party. Two members shall be appointed from the senate to serve as ex officio nonvoting members by the lieutenant governor, no more than one of whom shall be from the same party. The other members of the council shall be: A judge of the district court appointed by the chief justice of the supreme court, one local law enforcement official, appointed by the governor; the commissioner of public safety or his designee; and two private citizens not connected with law enforcement, appointed by the governor. The council shall select its own chairman. The members shall serve at the pleasure of those by whom their

appointments are made.

The council shall meet at least annually and at any other time upon the call of the governor, the chairman of the council, or any three of its members. Each nonlegislative council member shall be entitled to reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of official duties from funds appropriated to the department of public safety. Each legislative member shall receive expenses pursuant to section two point ten (2.10) and section two point twelve (2.12) of the Code.

\_\_\_\_\_  
ARTHUR A. NEU  
President of the Senate

\_\_\_\_\_  
DALE M. COCHRAN  
Speaker of the House

I hereby certify that this bill originated in the Senate and is known as Senate File 507, Sixty-sixth General Assembly.

\_\_\_\_\_  
STEVEN C. CROSS  
Secretary of the Senate

Approved June 20, 1976

\_\_\_\_\_  
ROBERT D. RAY  
Governor